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| am very happy to be able to turn
in another pleasing report on the

performance of Hongkong Post in
2006/2007.

iE4853B5E 4 Mr. TAM Wing-pong
BBBHER Postmaster General

As a government department, we have fulfilled our performance
pledges and provided an efficient, effective and affordable postal
service for the public, handling 1.33 billion mail items, running a
network of 133 post offices, processing 23.2 million bills, and
issuing 12 sets of special postage stamps, among others, during
the year. We have received praise from the general public and
acclaim from international postal organisations and other postal
administrations overseas for our people-oriented and highly
professional services. At the risk of sounding immodest, | can stake
a claim that Hongkong Post is one of the best performing postal
organisations in the world.

As aTrading Fund and, hence, a business enterprise, we have
excelled ourselves again in over-achieving the return target set for
us by the Government, with a total turnover of HK$4,115 million and
an operational profit of HK$447.3 million. We have benefited a lot
from the thriving economy, but we still have to continue our efforts
in widening our revenue base by introducing more new and better
services, and in curbing operating costs. VWe are beginning to see
the effect of these measures and we are confident that they will
come to fruition in the very near future.

2006/07 FEF
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Yet my yearlong experience in Hongkong Post has led me to realise
that the biggest challenge for Hongkong Post lies not with the
problems in providing an efficient and affordable public service, or
with maintaining a profitable business operation in a competitive
market. Rather, our greatest difficulty is the need to combine both
objectives, which is to say, having to run a government department
on a commercial basis, compete with operators in the private
sector without the essential flexibility available in the commercial
arena, and make a profit without overall control over the costs of
operation or the freedom to price our products and services.

Just as an illustration, the latest round of civil service pay rise is
putting an additional $90 million on our payroll each year, not taking
into account possible further pay adjustments on top of that in
future, while any postage adjustment is an issue more of a political
than commercial interest.

On top of the problems arising from the hybrid nature of Hongkong
Post as a Trading Fund government department, external pressure is
also at work which keeps us always on the alert. Major multi-
national couriers and integrators are becoming more and more
ferocious in scrambling for greater market share. Many are exerting
pressure on their own national governments to tighten control over
postal traffic in order to reduce the edges traditionally enjoyed by
the posts. The Universal Postal Union (UPU), the highest
international authority in postal matters, is considering introducing a
new method of calculating terminal dues* for handling international
mail, which, if adopted, will force Hongkong Post to pay 40-60%
more in such dues to the industrialised countries for handling mail
from Hong Kong. This will represent about a 20% increase in our
cost for handling each international mail item which will have to be
borne by senders.

* Terminal Due is a way to calculate the charge paid to destination postal
administrations for delivery of a letter sent abroad.

Hongkong Post 3
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One fun in life is to meet challenges. We are all geared up to have
some fun. We are exploring new routes and new services for
Speedpost, Hongkong Post's own flagship in Express Mail Services.
We will partner with China Post, United States Postal Service and
Singapore Post, among other interested postal administrations, to
develop more business opportunities. We are studying the business
potential in ASEAN countries, on the Indian sub-continent and in the
Middle East hub. We have also identified market niches in the
logistics business where we hope to provide an alternative channel
to help SMEs to move goods around. We are making use of all the
international forums open to us to air our concerns on issues and
measures which are unfavourable to our interests. Only when we
are assured of our financial vibrancy can we continue to provide and
to improve our services for the local community.

| have a highly professional and highly motivated team of colleagues
to work together to strengthen and further develop the business of
Hongkong Post. We all understand that we must keep pace with
the social and economic development of Hong Kong in order to
survive the keen competition that exists so that we can continue to
play the dual role of a government department and a profit-making
commercial enterprise. We will invest further in human resources
by providing more training opportunities and better working
conditions. We must also invest more in information technology to
ensure that we are well-equipped to meet the more demanding
standard of service expected by our clients.

In the longer term, however, we must take steps to sort out the
future of Hongkong Post and decide whether it is a fish or a fowl.
For Hongkong Post doing business in a truly competitive market,
the Trading Fund operation can only be an interim arrangement and
it is not conducive to a sustainable and profitable operation. Either
we are allowed to be more competitive by introducing bold and
profound corporate reforms, or one day, in the worst-case scenario,
we could find Hongkong Post reverting back to being a government-
funded department, with all the profitable bits of our operation lost
to our competitors.

2006/07 FEF



BEETHRANRBENER—BTE - BHK
EBIWRBITERRER - WRBRELEN
BATATERN - EERSTE BB BRIKRRE
FHRENER - BRREDAZBAEENE
E—R - ARFELSNEARR) HEETE
1EA - REKARFFLEBRNKEXRAE
R BRRRPREEFRENBE  BERXbLR
FWEERTT - REBAF] - ESLRHIRITHA
B AAERKMMAZIIETNESR - £
+ - BMEEHKEFBAMAERSE -
RERFELRR -

&g REBREAR - RESFREBER
T BERTE2ERRNRERT -

1 =1L |:[

o

z '

BEREWER
REWEB L EL DB

Annual Report 2006/07

Despite the very rapid development of electronic technology and
devices, the ominous prediction that the postal service would
become obsolete and be totally displaced by more advanced means
of communication, happily for the posts, has not come true. Postal
services remain an essential part of the communications network.
We are still relevant to the business world as much as ever for inter
personal communication. Parents always long for an occasional
letter or postcard from their children, and clients also appreciate
letters from their banks, insurance companies, fund managers or
travel agents to tell them how much they are treasured. An e-mail
or even a telephone call simply does not have quite the same
effect.

By the way, may | remind you that it is already time for you to start
preparing your Christmas card list.

TAM Wing-pong
Postmaster General and
General Manager of the Post Office Trading Fund

Hongkong Post D
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Established in 1841, Hongkong Post enjoys a rich and proud
heritage, as well as an excellent record of providing the community
with a reliable and affordable postal service.

Since it began operating as aTrading Fund in 1995, Hongkong Post
has striven to improve service levels in terms of both quality and
product range.

Today, Hongkong Post handles more than 3.6 million mail items
every day and plays an important role in facilitating trading and
commercial activities in Hong Kong.

Internationally, Hongkong Post continues to support small and
medium enterprises (SMEs) in expanding their businesses overseas
by enhancing delivery services that help complete transactions for
goods sold online. Increasing demand in this market continues to
generate growth in outbound registered mail traffic.

2006/07 FEF
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Overseas Mail Order Service
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At the same time, Hongkong Post is building its reputation as a
leading mail transit hub and logistics centre in the region, as well as
being a gateway to the Mainland. Significant progress has been
made in order to benefit from the Mainland's robust economic
expansion by implementing a number of new initiatives in
conjunction with the China Post Group. In positioning Hong Kong as
a gateway to Mainland China, these initiatives focus on enhancing
cross-border direct mail and mail delivery services. In 2006/07,
transit airmail represented around 20% of the total airmail volume
handled by our Air Mail Centre.

Hongkong Post 7
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Left to right

Mr. Michael CHUNG, Assistant Postmaster General (Postal)

Mr. Dan CHOI, Assistant Postmaster General (Business Development)

Mr. TAM Wing-pong, Postmaster General

Mr. CHAN Yau-fung, Deputy Postmaster General

Mr. FONG Yeun-tsin, Assistant Postmaster General (Corporate Development)
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Our Purpose - Linking People Delivering Business

In Linking People, Hongkong Post strives to fulfill our social
obligation to bring people together locally and around the world by
delivering correspondence and merchandise promptly and reliably at
uniform, affordable prices.

In Delivering Business, Hongkong Post creates added value for the
economy of Hong Kong by providing business solutions to different
sectors and maintaining the viability of Hongkong Post through
diversification into new business areas.
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Our Vision

¢ To be recognised in Hong Kong as an outstanding
service organisation

¢ To be recognised worldwide as an outstanding postal
service
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Our Mission

¢ To be a totally committed and valued workforce

¢ To achieve consistently the highest level of
customer satisfaction

¢ To be a viable business with sufficient resources to
invest in our future

¢ To anticipate changes and respond proactively

Our Values

¢ To care about our customers and our colleagues
¢ To excel through development, teamwork and innovation

Annual Report 2006/07
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STRATEGY MAP OF HONGKONG POST
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Mail volume

Serving 2.82 million residential and business addresses, Hongkong
Post handled 1.33 billion mail items during the year under review,
or 3.65 million items per day, representing an increase of 2.3%
compared with 2005/06.

Local mail accounted for about 87% of total traffic and showed a
volume increase of 4.7%, while international mail accounted for the
remaining 12.7% of total traffic, representing a volume decrease of
11.4% compared with the previous year.

Major overseas destinations

Major destinations for international letter mail and parcel traffic were the
United States of America, United Kingdom, Japan, Australia and
Mainland China. Hong Kong’s international mail traffic involved the
following regions:

1% B SIS AR
Asia & Asia Pacific
W B
Europe
FEM
Africa
W =N
North America
52% EEESL

South America
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SBER®E (s=2) OPERATING COSTS (Hk$ million)
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$319 PR
2006/07
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$1,405
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—MRESFSE 1EFI L General Mail Operating Expenses
17 BA 2 Administration Expenses

Performance

Favourable results in our mail business were mainly attributable to
higher growth in commercial volumes, as a result of burgeoning
economic activities such as a series of mega-IPO exercises in Hong
Kong during the year. Looking ahead, we anticipate that this growth
will stabilise.

Financial performance

For the year ending 31 March 2007 Hongkong Post achieved total
revenue of HK$4,115 million, representing 3.8% growth compared
with the previous year. This was due mainly to the 2.3% increase in
mail traffic, as described above.

Revenue and operating cost

Operating costs for the year ending 31 March 2007 amounted to
HK$3,668 million, an increase of 3% compared with 2005/06. This
was lower than the rate of revenue growth, as a result of effective
cost-control measures. Measured by items handled per man-hour,
Hongkong Post's productivity index increased from 115 to 116
compared with the previous year.

Operating profit totalled HK$447.3 million for 2006/07, while rate of
return amounted to 12.7% on Average Net Fixed Assets.

2006/07 FEF
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Business Development

Speedpost Pearl River Delta special promotion

Recognising the high potential for Speedpost business in the Pearl
River Delta region, a special promotion was launched in February
2007 offering a 50% discount to customers sending Speedpost
documents to 11 major cities in Guangdong province — Guangzhou,
Shenzhen, Dongguan, Foshan, Zhongshan, Jiangmen, Zhuhai,
Huizhou, Qingyuan, Zhaoquing and Shaoguan. In addition to
providing significant savings on postage, Speedpost delivers items
as early as 1:00 pm the next working day. The initial response, in
terms of an increase in traffic, has been encouraging.

Direct Mail Symposium

In June 2006, Hongkong Post organised a Direct Mail (DM)
Symposium with a consultancy firm. A select group of DM
professionals were invited to explore the prospect of enhancing
customer loyalty through direct mail. The symposium elaborated on
the findings of our recent media study, “Getting the Message
Across’ which indicated that the top three channels preferred by
consumers are TV, newspapers/magazines and mail. Detailed
findings are available on the Hongkong Post website
(www.hongkongpost.com).

Logistics Service Seminar

A significant event during the year was the Logistics Service Seminar,
organised by Hongkong Post and the China Post Logistics Company in
March 2007 More than 40 companies attending the seminar indicated a
strong demand for quality cross-border logistics and value-added services,
such as customs clearance and payment of customs duties. Taking
reference from views expressed by seminar attendees, plans are now
under way to introduce logistics services to meet the needs of all SMIEs.

KR BEHE L  BK= AIRBEIRE " o
Speedpost launched the “Pearl River Delta Express” Campaign.

Annual Report 2006/07
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A Direct Mail Symposium was organised to promote the benefits
of direct mail.
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A new set of definitive stamps featuring a wide variety of birds in Hong
Kong was issued.
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The publicity campaign for “Correct Address, Prompt Delivery” received
very good response.

Productivity improvement

While exploring the potential for business development and new
avenues of opportunity, we are also working to enhance Hongkong
Post's operating systems and processes through the newly-
established Productivity and Quality Management System (PQMS).
The project was financed by the Quality of Service Fund of the
Universal Postal Union. The exclusive aim of the fund is to improve
letter post service quality, with a particular focus on speed,
reliability and customer satisfaction.

Mail-tracing service

The number of enquiries handled by our Mail Tracing Office has
increased significantly, as a result of a boom in the international
registered mail service fuelled by an increase in Internet trading. To
meet rising customer demand, we invested in enhancing call-centre
facilities and performance. Reprovisioned in October 2006, the new
Mail Tracing Office provides improved service to customers as well
as a better working environment for our staff.

Issue of new definitive stamps

A new set of definitive stamps featuring a wide variety of birds in
Hong Kong was issued on 31 December 2006. This was the third
set of definitive stamps issued by Hongkong Post since the
establishment of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of
the People’s Republic of China.

Publicity campaign

In March 2007, Hongkong Post launched a publicity campaign with
the theme “Correct Address, Prompt Delivery” to encourage the
public to write addresses clearly and accurately to facilitate prompt
delivery of mail items. Featuring the popular cartoon character
McMug as a “postal ambassador” helped us achieve wide media
coverage and a positive response from the public.
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In 2007/08, Hongkong Post plans to:

Letter business

e Develop business collaboration with China Post and Macao Post
in facilitating movement and exchange of direct mail among
various cities in the Mainland and Macao.

* [nvest in the e-Post service to seize business opportunities
arising from the outsourcing of statement printing and
consolidation, and open a new e-Post Centre in mid-2007.

International mail business

e \Work closely with online trading platforms and develop
customised services to meet the needs of small and medium
enterprises (SMEs) seeking to expand business overseas.

e Automate mail acceptance procedures in the Bulk Registered
Airmail service.

e Attract international online sellers and mail consolidators to
establish production sites and warehouses in Hong Kong and
promote channeling of mail traffic through Hongkong Post.

e Promote Hong Kong as an Asia Pacific transit hub and a sub-hub
for Mainland China.

Retail & Logistics business
e Formulate strategic collaboration with China Post Logistics
Company to develop cross-border logistics business.

Mechanised Letter Sorting System
e Replace the Mechanised Letter Sorting System (MLSS) to meet
changing operational and service needs.

Hongkong Post 19
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Speedpost service covers over 210 destinations worldwide.
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Speedpost is renowned for its reliability and efficiency.

Speedpost service

According to Express Mail Service (EMS) market research in March
2007 re-exports continued to grow in the first to third quarter of
2007 at a rate of 1.4% compared with the corresponding period last
year, while domestic exports declined by 3.4% during the same
period. A key challenge faced by Speedpost is competition from
international couriers who are able to conclude global contracts in
countries where re-exported goods originate, which limits
Speedpost’s growth prospects. As ports and airports in the
Mainland expand capacity and increase direct connections with
other countries, the role of Hong Kong as a re-exporter of goods
originating from the Mainland is beginning to shrink. Moreover, in
view of the huge potential offered by the Mainland market,
international couriers have invested in infrastructure in the Mainland
and compete fiercely on price to fill spare capacity, which further
erodes Speedpost’s market share.

To meet these challenges, Speedpost will explore opportunities to
collaborate with China Post to meet the Mainland's export and
import needs. Capitalising on Hong Kong's extensive air conveyance
network, along with connections and close proximity to the Pearl
River Delta’s strong domestic air networks, Hong Kong holds great
potential as a hub to deliver postal shipments from the Mainland to
destinations all over the world. Ample business opportunities exist
in value-added services, such as bulk-breaking in Hong Kong for
onward shipment to other countries. Development of a multiple-
piece bulk service will also enable Speedpost to reach a wider
market. In view of the proximity and strong relationships between
businesses in Hong Kong and Guangdong Province, we will
increase co-operation with China Post to streamline processes,
enhance service quality and reduce costs in the postal business.
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Hongkong Post provides the community with a reliable postal service.
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Mail volume recorded an increase of 2.3% as compared with the previous
year.

Letter business

Market research conducted by a global management consulting
company in 2007 showed that most large business mailers regard
Hongkong Post as a reputable partner and are highly satisfied with the
standard of local and international mail services provided. The study
also estimated that Hongkong Post's share of the local mail market is
comparable with the Asia Pacific average of 98%, whereas our share
of the international mail market is around 90%, which is significantly
higher than the Asia Pacific average of 56%.

The mail market is growing steadily and with stability, as many
companies begin to channel considerable effort into building
Customer Relationship Management (CRM) capabilities to enable
more focused and effective marketing strategies. The expectation is
that this will result in growing demand for more targeted and
economical marketing tools, such as direct mail. Hongkong Post will
continue to support the development of this trend towards direct
mail by providing a value-formoney delivery solution to reduce the
cost of marketing. The research also highlights a sizeable market
demand for a bundling service covering the printing of statements
and mail delivery. Hongkong Post has been keen to meet this
market need by working with Singapore Post to invest in a new
e-Post Centre to provide a total solution across this part of the
postal value chain.

Our business strategies to counter challenges include:

e Sustain growth in core services

Diversify and open up new businesses

Invest in infrastructure, information technology and equipment
Enhance productivity through stringent cost control and
optimisation of the post office network

Co-operate with international courier companies and explore
where synergies exist

Co-operate with major postal administrations in enhancing the
quality of Speedpost and other international mail services

Hongkong Post 2b
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OUR CONTRIBUTION TO INTERNATIONAL INITIATIVES
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The Universal Postal Union (UPU) is a specialised United Nations
agency comprising 191 member countries, which send delegates to
converge at the Universal Postal Congress every four years to vote
on major issues. Hongkong Post participates in the UPU meetings
as a member of the People's Republic of China delegation and plays
an active role in the UPU and Asia Pacific Postal Union (APPU). This
has included the EMS Co-operative, Terminal Dues Work Group and
Parcels Sub-group, as well as the APP Co-operative.

Promoting Hong Kong’s reputation and

influence at international level

Hongkong Post serves as one of the seven members of the EMS
Co-operative Board of the UPU, established in 1999 to improve
EMS standards worldwide.

Hongkong Post co-chairs a study sub-group of the UPU'’s Terminal
Dues Project Group, which was established to help design a new
terminal dues system by which postal administrations can charge
one another for processing and delivering inward international mail.

Hongkong Post is also one of seven Management Board members
of the Asia Pacific Post Co-operative, established in 2000 to
promote service improvements in the region.

Facing the challenge of a forced increase in
international postage

Mounting pressure for a substantial increase in postal charges for
international letter mail services is looming in the face of proposed
changes to the current terminal dues system in 2010.

This is the system by which payments are made to destination
postal administrations for delivery of letters, and is administered by
the UPU. Reciprocity was the historic governing principle, based on
the premise that every letter sent would prompt a reply and so
bring about a natural balance between inward and outward flows.
This “gentlemen'’s agreement” meant postal administrations did not
charge one another for handling mail, with the result that originating
administrations were not required to share revenue generated by
senders.

Unequal pace of economic development among countries brought

about differences in volume growth until increasing imbalances led
to the creation of the terminal dues system by the 1969 Tokyo

2006/07 FEF
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Leveraging on Hong Kong's excellent flight connections, we are building a

reputation as a leading mail transit hub in Asia.
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Hongkong Post continues to maintain close relationships with overseas
postal administrations to expand our international business.

Congress. The first such system was based on a single rate per
kilogram for mail sent to any country. The actual amount paid by
each postal administration was calculated on actual weight of mail
volume or was established through sampling exercises.

Today, however, the terminal dues rate is set artificially low to
support developing countries, but as more postal administrations,
especially in Europe’s industrialised countries, have become
corporatised or privatised, the UPU has come under pressure to
devise a system by which full costs are covered for services
provided. This has led to a new UPU proposal to link terminal dues
to individual levels of domestic postage.

Impact on Hong Kong

According to latest UPU research, domestic postage for an
industrialised country is about three times higher than that of a
developing nation. As an example, domestic postage for sending a
20g letter in Japan is more than HK$5, compared with just HK$1.40
in Hong Kong. This is mainly due to the fact that domestic postal
services in most industrialised countries are commercial
enterprises, while governments in the majority of developing
countries subsidise such services.

If the proposal for rigid linkage of terminal dues to domestic
postage were to be implemented, Hongkong Post would face much
higher charges for outbound mail. A substantial increase in postage
for our international letter mail service would have to be introduced
to cover the much higher costs as a result.

Managing the threat

With this in mind, Hongkong Post has been working closely with
China Post and other Asia Pacific operators to lobby vigorously for a
limit to any increase in terminal dues. A final decision will be taken
after a vote at the Universal Postal Congress, which is due to take
place in Nairobi in 2008.
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OVERVIEW OF 2006/07 SPECIAL STAMP ISSUES
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MR SRR S SE R —%R 1 (20065F5A4H)

Mainland Scenery Series No. 5: Mount Taishan

(4 May 2006)

St NER R BR/NEGRNERS - 2E RS
R o TR 1987 FEBSBHRIGEBSIA (HFEE
B8 - WARRREZAHILKZ — °

As a continuation of efforts to showcase scenic national
landmarks and heritage attractions in the Mainland, this
issue is the fifth in the Mainland Scenery Series and
portrays glorious views of Mount Taishan. Mount Taishan
is widely regarded as one of the greatest mountains of
China and was added to UNESCOQO'’s World Heritage List
in 1987.

SRSTAHB2AEZWIE2006MRTHBRDER
(20065E5H27H)

Stamp Sheetlet to Commemorate Hongkong Post’s
Participation in the Washington 2006 World Philatelic

Exhibition (27 May 2006)

BB RIEITERREEE T TEBRN/NER - 4
SEIZERRIAHEE 2006 - BMEABREHHASEE - X84
"EEEBIE T - RREAR "M BEAHAL o

A sheetlet containing a $10 stamp was issued by
Hongkong Post to commemorate this event. Under the
patronage of the Fédération Internationale de Philatélie,
the exhibition explored the themes of “Role of the Post
Office in Uniting the Country’ “Children —They Are The
Future” and “Moving the Mail in the 21st Century”

HE RS (200656 A15H )

Chinese Idioms and Their Stories (15 June 2006)
—EMMEE - LEBHNRENBLMRP RS - 545
B F A H R B S 2SR B o

A set of four stamps was issued to illustrate classic
Chinese idioms through adorable paintings, with the
aim of sparking interest in Chinese literature and culture
among young collectors.
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4. FET/I\ERE (20065£7H18H)
Special Attractions of the 18 Districts in Hong Kong
(18 July 2006)
BEABRET—E 18HUSRIEE - BESR$1.40 -
DRI AEEE 18 AV ENBR ZE - BREZEH N
EZEN =B ERE -
A set of 18 stamps each value of $1.40 was issued to
capture the unique features and charm of each of Hong
Kong's 18 districts. Each stamp portrays three different
elements of a particular district. All carried a HK$1.40
denomination.

bt o kit i i . PEEFZ—AMFIBSRTT ETE (20065£8 A 22H)
Hong Kong, China — Austria Joint Issue on Fireworks

(22 August 2006)

2 7B B I B M| F B LA B & BT —E|ES AT

AVEDSE o /NBUSR AR TE (B 50 TLEVESSRIA “ 7K SRRt
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EH'[!-N'G KONG, EH!H.I FWA M SHONG KONG,CHINA TR & 8 § Hongkong Post and Austrian Post jointly issued a set of

ottt it e Rttt bttt two $5 stamps on fireworks. Crystal fabric was applied
to the two HK$50 stamps on the sheetlet to highlight
spectacular firework displays.
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EFR#FH (20065F9A21H)

International Day of Peace (21 September 2006)
—ELMNBR -SH"E" > "MF" - "HFE"
YRARE R AGE T WUEE  WREALREBHEEE 1 B
B HXF

e rrreetieanrcel | 2 E = A set of five stamps carrying messages of love, peace,
hope, care and harmony was issued to show Hong
Kong's support for the United Nations International Day
of Peace.

BFE#H IR (20065E10A19H)

Government Transport (19 October 2006)
HE—EM - RANBEENBRFLENE (BEEHE -
EEEE - EPIE - BUSRITIRISE - BBEBEMARSE
BER) ~"RAEAERTASEMAERIEE - EH T AR
EERREIRSLEEDOEEE

This was Hong Kong's first-ever series of six stamps
featuring the unique forms of government transport
within the six disciplined services and departments —
Correctional Services Department, Customs and Excise
Department, Fire Services Department, Government
Flying Service, Hong Kong Police Force and Immigration
Department. Individual service and departmental logos
were displayed prominently on each stamp.
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FAAlLgEE—B/M+ASF (20065511A12R8)

The 140th Anniversary of the Birth of Dr. Sun Yat-sen
(12 November 2006)

RSP ILFEE 140 BF - BB EEHEL —ERED
ER—FBR/NER - EERPILUTRRSHENER &
WEA—EHEX

Celebrating the 140th anniversary of the birth of Dr. Sun
Yat-sen, these four commemorative stamps and a stamp
sheetlet provided a glimpse into Dr. Sun’s life by
presenting portraits at different stages of the luminary’s
life.

DROEI (20065E11828H)

Heartwarming Il (28 November 2006)

#2003 FEITHERAZEWN " LDELE " FRIHE

& - BEIMEE " BHEAE "N LR " B
EHEH—8E " LDELE " BE - BRAENZE M E
BERANED - BEAIELD - XEEEEER -
Following the success of our first set of special
Heartwarming stamps in 2003, Hongkong Post released
the second set with the themes “Love and Care” and
“Celebrations” Customers may add a warm and
personalised touch by printing a photographic portrait or
message on stamp tabs.

. BRTZ (BF) (20072A4H)
Year of the Pig (4 February 2007)
EREABHERFHBEE=8NE/\E - BEHALE
B - BRAREMIT - R RREEL o
The Year of the Pig stamp issue was the eighth Lunar
New Year special stamp issue in the third series from
Hongkong Post. To capture the gradation of light and
shade and to accentuate the three-dimensional effect,
five colour printing is used on the stamps against a
background embellished with silver foliage.

Itoh - EEBBRBET—EHBE/NER - REBA - B
BER— o BIEPIESATIRBRENMA @ WHESSAIRKE
FBHRE - RRINZE o BN BE B 2003 FUARMERNE =
EEREHAEER - —ENMAAEEE - Ak - &

M FERRE - BRI 6 ENRI BT RIE RO R B A AR D&
B o

A special stamp sheetlet carrying two stamps featuring
the Dog and the Pig was embossed and hot-foiled with
gold and silver and came with a certificate of authenticity.
In addition, a special set of four flock stamps featured the
Monkey, Rooster, Dog and Pig and involved fourcolour
printing on flock paper. This was the second set of flock
stamps on Lunar New Year Animals since 2003.
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2007 Centenary of World Scouting
(1 March 2007)
REVERETEGEETF - BAHBUHEL —EMKAL
FNRAETEPINEL - A MEF LT —8

Hongkong Post marked the World Scouting Centennial
by issuing a set of four commemorative stamps
depicting the history and achievements of the scouting
movement, together with a glimpse into scouting icons
and activities.

.REBR — SWWESR (20075£3822H)
Children Stamps — Bunny Fun and Games (22
March 2007)
"REBE — RBEEEN " REELRTRALE
BN ESRE EHERIBE - AFE5 —ANEBE
FETRES - —E/\MNZEBRE - EEAESED
FRERSE - WEEMDMIER A — B2 MR HELEN
EHES o
The Bunny Fun and Games issue was the first set of
stamps ever to depict games and interactive
educational activities to delight young collectors. This
set of six stamps was designed to inspire youngsters'
enthusiasm and spark an interest in stamp collecting
as a life-long, family fun activity.
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Hongkong Post with support from EMB (now EDB) launched the Children

Stamps — Paper Folding Fun Design Competition.
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Hongkong Post Stamps Catalogue (Volume II, Fourth Edition) is a complete
guide updated to include issues from 1997 to 2006.

Other stamp products
Series No. 19 and No. 20 - ITU TELECOM WORLD 2006 (Air
Mail)Postage Prepaid Postcard (4 December 2006)

A set of two postage prepaid postcards, Series No. 19 and 20, was
issued to commemorate Hong Kong's successful hosting of the ITU
TELECOM WORLD 2006 event, which ran from 4-8 December
2006.

2006 Annual Stamp Album and 2006 Annual Stamp Pack (31
December 2006)

The 2006 Annual Stamp Album provided a full collection of all
special and commemorative stamps, souvenir sheets and stamp
sheetlets issued by Hongkong Post in 2006, with detailed
descriptions of each theme and commemorative event, while 2006
Annual Stamp Pack contained full collection of 2006 stamps.

Stamps Catalogue (29 March 2007)

In addition to Hong Kong stamps and prepaid postage items issued
on or after 1 July 1997 to the end of 2003 covered in the last
edition, the Stamps Catalogue (Volume I, Fourth Edition) was
updated to include items issued during the period 2004 to 2006.

Nurturing an interest in philately among youngsters

In a move to inspire creativity among children, Hongkong Post with
the support from the former Education and Manpower Bureau
(EMB, now known as the Education Bureau) launched the Children
Stamp — Paper Folding Fun Design Competition in November 2006.

To promote philately further, the 8th InterSchool Stamp Exhibits
Competition was held with support from EMB (now Education
Bureau) and involved more than 200 participating students. To mark
the special event, Hongkong Post also issued a souvenir cover
together with a special postmark and commemorative cachet.

Hongkong Post 3b



REE AR IS MR
CUSTOMER SERVICE AND RELATIONSHIPS

ItiPack
Ml e

36 EBEBR 2006/07 FEFH



B AT EISE A FHEHRE B -
Our Postshop products are perfect gifts for all occasions.
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COMPLIMENTS

Complaints vs. compliments

Representing a spectacular increase of 82% over the previous year,
Hongkong Post received 2,071 compliments during 2006/07, which
marked the sixth consecutive year of steadily-increasing customer
bouquets.

Among the 2,071 compliments received, 975 (47 %) were in
appreciation of our counter service, while 939 (45%) were in
recognition of our delivery service performance. These figures
demonstrate a very high level of commendation from the general
public.

A total of 4,978 complaints were received in 2006/07, down 9.9%
from the previous year. Most complaints during the year were
related to delivery and counter services.

Customer Relationship Management

Following implementation of an effective Customer Relationship
Management (CRM) system, we have conducted regular analyses
on market trends and customer preferences. Feedback is captured
from various customer interaction channels to facilitate planning
and implementation of service enhancement programmes. This
information is analysed with a scientific approach and transformed
into practical intelligence to assist in the refinement of services and
products.
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Customers’ smiles are our motivation.

Customer satisfaction

City University of Hong Kong Survey

In the 2006 Consumer Satisfaction Index compiled by the City
University of Hong Kong, postal services came first among 68
major local goods and services companies, indicating that
consumer satisfaction with Hongkong Post has reached an all-time
high.

Hongkong Post’s Customer Satisfaction Survey

The 2006 Customer Satisfaction Survey returned promising results,
showing that 95%, 96% and 95% of respondents were satisfied
with our counter, delivery and hotline services, respectively.

In addition, more than 2,200 comments about customer
appreciation were received, representing a strong and healthy
relationship between Hongkong Post and the general public.

Mystery Shopper Surveys

In 2006, Hongkong Post commissioned an independent research
consultant to conduct mystery shopper surveys to track and
monitor the quality of our counter and hotline services.

Results showed that both services had improved since the previous
year. Overall counter service performance showed an increase in
satisfaction level from 79% in 2005 to 87 % in 2006, while
satisfaction with hotline services increased from 74% in 2005 to
86% in 2006.
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95% of respondents in the 2006 Customer Satisfaction Survey were
satisfied with our counter service.
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We collect customer feedback through the Customer Liaison Group.

Customer Liaison Group (CLG)

Established in 1993, the CLG comprises the Mail User Group and
Philately Group and contains 64 members. Quarterly meetings
produce many constructive suggestions in the interests of
improving postal and philatelic service standards.

The CLG exists to improve Hongkong Post’s understanding of
customer needs, capture opinions on our services and enhance
customer understanding of Hongkong Post policies, products and
services. The CLG not only provides feedback on Hongkong Post’s
performance and overall quality of service, but also facilitates the
exchange of views on operations and service matters to help us
enhance efficiency and service standards.

PostalPlus for SMEs

Hongkong Post continues to identify the business needs of local
small and medium enterprises (SMEs) and design tactical service
offers to support their development.

During the year, we continued to organise activities such as
seminars and exhibitions to keep our members abreast of the
postal solutions available to them. As of March 2007, PostalPlus for
SMEs had recruited 32,000 members.
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Hongkong Post continues to pursue the Information System
Strategy formulated in 2005 and implement computer systems
with a view to enhancing customer service and improving
operational efficiency.

Keeping Hongkong Post at the cutting edge of Information &
Communications Technologies (ICT) in the interests of customer
service excellence played a significant role in our outstanding
Express Mail Service performance. This was rewarded with
Universal Postal Union Gold Level Certification — the pinnacle of
industry recognition — for the fifth consecutive year.

The latest ICT developments at Hongkong Post are based on
wireless and mobile technologies to accelerate the flow of
information to our customers. In 2006, for example, we fine-tuned
the Collection and Delivery Management System (CDMS),
developed three years earlier as Hong Kong's first such General
Packet Radio Service (GPRS) application utilising handheld Personal
Digital Assistants (PDAs).

More PDAs are being used by postal inspectors to capture a variety
of critical day-to-day delivery data to be processed by the Mail
Delivery Management System (MDMS). This records allocation of
resources to delivery, sorting and other indoor activities to track
productivity in terms of mail traffic and delivery analysis, workload
and trends.

Based on emerging technologies, these innovative applications
have given rise to world-class sophistication in Hongkong Post’s
operations. For example, our e-Ticksheet system developed in
2006/07 applies wireless and mobile know-how to track mail items
from despatching to receiving offices, enabling us to improve both
the speed and accuracy of despatch information flow throughout
offices. PDAs are now used to scan mail receptacles before loading
or unloading, and the information uploaded to our wireless
e-Ticksheet system has now obviated the need for paper-based
ticksheets.
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Geographic Information System (GIS) expedites
delivery

Integration of the CDMS and Geographic Information System (GIS)
means the status of Speedpost and Local CourierPost items can be
collected by PDAs on customer premises and then transmitted back
to central servers and correlated with current orders. At the control
centre, these items appear on a digital map that enables operators
to zoom-in on any particular situation to expedite delivery. The same
digital map approach is being considered to facilitate more effective
planning and streamlining of beat operations.

Moving forward to automate counter services
Hongkong Post completed a feasibility study for the counter
automation system in 2006 and is considering phased
implementation. First priority will be given to the establishment of
an electronic customs clearance system in late 2008.

Getting to know our customers better

A new Customer Relationship Management (CRM) system
implemented in early 2006 to enhance sales and marketing
campaign management is now proving even more effective, thanks
to the introduction of a leading-edge analytical tool that allows
access to data stored in legacy systems.
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Identifying snags before they happen

Another 2007 innovation already paying dividends is the electronic
Workflow Processing System (WPS), which went live in January to
replace slow manual data collection and approval processes.

WPS has been implemented in 20 delivery offices and three mail
processing centres for collecting mail traffic returns, with moves to
automate other processes, such as staff recruitment, under way by
the second quarter of 2007

Hardware upgrade ensures continuity of service

In the interests of continuity of service to our customers, Hongkong
Post completed a project in March 2007 to upgrade 830
workstations to improve staff efficiency on the Track and Trace
System (TTS), Speedpost Acceptance System (SAS), Local Standing
Order System (LSOS) and PayThruPost (PTP). Many of these
workstations had been in use for more than five years, giving rise to
the possibility of service interruption because of hardware failure.

Sharing knowledge and experience via ICT

In October 2006, our Knowledge Management System (KMS) was
modified to allow the addition of “MyKMS" by which users are
able to create and maintain personal databases of useful
knowledge. This enables sharing of personal experience in case
resolution and other service issues. The powerful search capability
allows users to locate useful information in seconds without having
to “reinvent the wheel"” in recurring scenarios.
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World-class website services

In a bid to increase reliability and ease congestion, a move was
made in the 2007 Website Infrastructure Enhancement project to
build a “mirror” site for www.hongkongpost.com. Inquiries are
routed to each site according to usage levels via an automatic load-
balancing capability.

In line with our continuing efforts to maintain and enhance online
service, our website has attracted a number of accolades over the
last few years. In 2005, for example, the Internet Professional
Association (iProA) presented us with the Gold Web Care Award in
recognition of improvements to our website. In October 2006,
www.hongkongpost.com became one of the first 18 websites in
Hong Kong to be accredited by iProA against the W3C international
web-accessibility standard, indicating the industry’s highest degree
of accessibility.
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'Best of the Best” Awardees went on a Thailand Post study tour.
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Hongkong Post offers a wide variety of vocational and competence
development training programmes.

Our people

As of 31 March 2007, Hongkong Post had an establishment of
5,347 personnel on civil service terms and 2,217 on non-civil
service terms. Civil servants are deployed in core postal business
operations, while non-civil service staff are deployed mainly to take
up either managerial positions to provide professional services or
support roles, including sales and marketing, information
technology, industrial engineering, finance and accounting or jobs
with fluctuating workloads and seasonal demands.

Our people vision

We believe happy staff mean happy customers. During the year, we
launched a number of programmes in the interests of upgrading
staff competencies and promoting their well-being.

Training and development

The Hongkong Post Staff Training Centre aims to design and deliver
training and development programmes that serve to enhance
personal and organisational effectiveness, as well as to fortify a
continuous learning and improvement culture. During the year, the
Centre continued to deliver a wide range of programmes, with
numbers of training days showing a slight increase to 32,497 in
2006/07 compared with the previous year's 32,167
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The "warm-up exercise" was a major highlight in the "OSH Week" held in
March 2007
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"OSH" training programmes are organised throughout the year.

Health and Safety programmes

A "safety climate survey” was conducted during the period 17
March to 12 April 2006 to collect staff views on occupational health
and safety (OSH). Results indicated that overall OSH awareness
throughout the workforce was high, and that attitudes towards
improvement measures were positive.

Another “OSH Week" followed in March 2007 to promote health
and safety and featured talks on office violence, stress
management and prevention of back injuries, as well as legislative
requirements of the Manual Handling Operations and Safety
Management Concept. A competition was also organised to help
boost OSH awareness.

Many comprehensive reviews of instructions relating to “tail-lift
operation” and “how to prevent dog attacks” were conducted in
2006 and new safety guidelines were circulated.

All light trucks have been fitted with rear Charge Coupled Device

(CCD) colour cameras to maximise safety during reversing
manoeuvres.
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Donation to voluntary organisations (proportion of
sales proceeds from “Heartwarming Stamps II”
Customised Service) and other community
programmes

Customers using Hongkong Post's “Heartwarming Stamps 11"
Customised Service were able to contribute to the less fortunate,
needy and elderly sections of the community. During the holiday
seasons of Christmas 2006 and Lunar New Year 2007, Hongkong
Post — as a caring organisation — promoted the “Love & Care”
theme in the community by donating a proportion of sales revenue
to 10 charitable organisations. These included SCMP Charities Ltd —
Operation Santa Claus, the H.K.S.K.H. St Christopher's Home,
Hong Kong Society for the Protection of Children, Against Child
Abuse Ltd, Chi Lin Nunnery, Christian Family Service Centre,
Harmony House Limited, Hong Kong Family Welfare Society, The
Against Elderly Abuse of Hong Kong and The Hong Kong Society for
the Aged.

In addition to efforts at the corporate level, staff volunteers
belonging to the PostCare Club serve the community in their own
time, alongside family and friends.

PostCare Club activities during the year under review included
Christmas visits to homes for the elderly, Hong Kong Red Cross
patients and special needs students at the John F Kennedy Centre.

During 2006/07, our volunteers also helped to integrate immigrant
children into the community by providing free English study classes
and assisting them with school assignments.
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Part of the proceeds from the “Heartwarming
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Representatives of the PostCare Club visited PostCare Club organised visits to homes for the
special needs students at the John F. Kennedy elderly.

Stamps II” Customised Service was donated to Centre.

help the children and the elderly.
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Our responsibility to the environment

Hongkong Post is committed to protecting the environment and
supporting sustainable development within the community. We are
keen to ensure that our services and internal operations are
conducted in an environmentally-responsible manner. A number of
“green” office practices have been put into place to save energy,
reduce paper consumption and waste, and recycle materials. We
promote environmental awareness among staff, with a view to
encouraging efficient and prudent use of resources and energy in all
our operations.

Helping to create a better environment
Hongkong Post maintains a policy of promoting and implementing
environmentally-friendly practices in every aspect of our operations.

Adopting a “green workplace” policy, Hongkong Post is particularly
keen to make sure that regular Indoor Air Quality (IAQ)
measurements are taken by the Electrical and Mechanical Services
Department for the well-being of our employees.

A highlight during the year under review was progress in developing
an environmentally-friendly postal vehicle fleet, during which 25 of
our diesel vehicles were retrofitted with particulate-removal devices
to help reduce emissions. Looking ahead, more Euro-IV and other
environmentally-friendly vehicles will be introduced as
replacements. We have also fitted some 100 retreaded tyres to
fleet vehicles and require that all components in new vehicles are
free from asbestos. Parts with potential for recycling are identified
on used vehicles, as part of our overall policy to keep waste to a
minimum wherever possible.

In other initiatives to support the environment during 2006/07, we
recycled 42,000 used laserjet cartridges, enabled 10,000 Local
Standing Order Service customers to receive philatelic newsletters
and stamp collection letters by email to reduce consumption of
paper, used environmentally-friendly material for postal circular
printing and reduced electricity consumption by 2.8% compared
with the previous year, thanks to support from staff members.
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Our Speedpost service received the Universal Postal
Union's Gold Level Certification for the fifth
consecutive year.
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Speedpost achievements

In 2006, and for the fifth consecutive year, our Speedpost service
won the Universal Postal Union's Gold Level Certification for
outstanding express mail performance.

Gold Level Certification — the highest level of recognition — was
awarded to only 14 postal administrations worldwide last year.

The award is based on the Universal Postal Union EMS Co-
operative’s audit and measurement programme, which is
conducted by an independent consultant throughout 196 express
mail service operators. Criteria for the award include delivery
performance, timely provision of tracking data and call centre
performance.

Hongkong Post'’s ranking as one of the top 14 postal administrations
in the world, in terms of express mail service performance, would
not have been possible without the dedication, teamwork and
professionalism of our people. Their efforts have earned
international acclaim for Hongkong Post, underscoring our
commitment to providing the highest quality of service to our
customers.

<EMS

FEMs COOPFPERATIES CERTIVPICATION

(‘x/r?/ / bfmm/

awared no
H O ™~ G KEKONG (CHINA)

i 200Ky

bty it

BB R o dEEE -
Universal Postal Union Gold Level Certification.
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Winners of the HKACE Customer Service Excellence Awards 2006.
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Hongkong Post received the Ombudsman’s Award 2006.

Customer service awards

Hongkong Post won two accolades in the Customer Service
Excellence Awards 2006 scheme organised by the Hong Kong
Association for Customer Service Excellence (HKACE).

They were a silverstandard Team Award (Field & Special Service) in
respect of the Yuen Long Delivery Office, and a silverstandard
Individual Award (Internal Support Service) for a tutor at the
Hongkong Post Staff Training Centre.

More recognition

Other honours bestowed on Hongkong Post during the year under
review included the Ombudsman’s Award 2006 for Departments/
Organisations. This was in recognition of our efforts to improve
quality of service and maintain fairness in public administration.

In addition, we won an Excellence and Gold Prize for Web Care
Award 2006 from Hong Kong's Internet Professional Association, as
well as a Merit Award in the Deluxe Packaging: Gift Box category of
the 18th Hong Kong Print Awards for our 2005 Prestige Annual
Stamp Album.

At the individual level, five members of staff won the Distinguished
Salesperson Award in the 38th Distinguished Salesperson Award
Programme organised by the Hong Kong Management Association
(HKMA).
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OUR PLEDGE
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ARFSHYRL, - W RERE B B P R] LATERA
ZHEHRIEIKF -

£ 2006/07 F[E » BEBIW 24 TBARFSHEGE
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EFRBHMNBEFRARBETIE - TEER R
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RIRERHA - BAGEHN 8% BRES -

@RI - BREMIC ERIRIRFE BRI
ME&RARTE - IREBERMYIRGEBA
BERLE ] -

BB T E IR ©

The Performance Pledge scheme is our promise to provide
consistently professional and high-quality service by setting out
standards that our customers can expect from us.

Thanks to a fully-engaged and committed workforce, Hongkong
Post has remained faithful to Performance Pledges by achieving full
compliance in 23 out of 24 services in 2006/07.

The wider Hongkong Post team is pleased to be judged on results
and takes pride in having exceeded targets in relation to 18 of our
pledged standards — for instance, in attaining 99.9% reliability of
next-day delivery of local letters across Hong Kong against a pledge
of 98%.

This achievement represents the highest performance level of its
kind in the world and represents the extent of our commitment to
Hong Kong.

TR FHEHR T —BIEXKE
RELIABILITY OF NEXT-DAY DELIVERY
OF LOCAL LETTERS

99.9%

&

Hongkong Post is committed to achieving our performance pledges.
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PERFORMANCE PLEDGES 2006/07 Target % Performance %

7 3t 7% 5] PR 66 4
Local and International Mail
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BR¥ &5 A KR
PERFORMANCE PLEDGES 2006/07 Target % Performance %

IR B IR R 7 BB R
Speedpost and Local CourierPost

HEGL AR
Retail Business

it Notes:

BB EIERETH - FEMHRZICHT - HIE Peak periods include the first days of issue of philatelic products, seasonal pressure

HED - BB FRBRITIRES SIS - BIZEAE 1 periods such as Christmas, Lunar New Year and the government bills peak collection

A UE4 -7 10 Aegiég— B2 E - 5B/ time such as the whole month of January and the last week of April, July and

K= R H T R BV © October. Details of specific peak hours for individual post offices are displayed in the
public hall.
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SR R BN E M
Philately & Postshop Products

000000000000000000

B Fi1Z:B R
Certification Authority

R
Hotlines
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PERFORMANCE PLEDGES 2006/07 Target % Performance %
P $E 5 BRI AR 5 A0 R 5
Application for Postal Services
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Post Office Trading Fund

Financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2007
Prepared and submitted pursuant to section 7(4) of the Trading Funds Ordinance (Cap. 430)
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& RE
VIABILITY

HKBEERSE Post Office Trading Fund

2007
=5

2006

=4

Performance Performance

(@) EEEERRE Rate of return on fixed assets 12.7% 13.2%
b) WA UABSETE) Revenue (HK$ million) 4,115 3,966
©) X CAEEBITE Expenditure (HK$ million) 3,668 3,560
(d EBRENABSETE Profit after tax (HK$ million) 459 463
(e) ZHEUABEME Traffic (Million items) 1,331 1,301
(f) &ECAESEBT Investment (HK$ million) 59 40
@ EENEAS/NEEEMEM)  Productivity (Items per man-hour) 116 115
(h) EBBNIERIRRCAN (BoT) Unit handling cost (HK$) 1.57 1.64
(i)  BEAR Total number of staff 7411 7,353
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Bk
PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT

HZE200743A318IEEE  for the year ended 31 March 2007

HHEEEESE Post Office Trading Fund

2007 2006

BMEHKS'000 BHHKS000

ERE Turnover 3 4,115,134 3,965,567
SEVERAN Operating costs 4 (3,667,882) (3,560,109)
EERER Profit from operations 447,252 405,458
HAbgA Other income 5 88,107 59,308
RE AL AN Finance cost 6 = (1,728)
BRBLATZ R Profit before tax 535,359 463,038
IR Taxation 7 (76,113) -
BRBR BT Profit after tax 459,246 463,038
BRERE Proposed dividend 8 229,623 231,519
EEEEmBRE Rate of return on fixed assets 9 12.7% 13.2%
FOL4EGE TR ALLIRE B—E5 ° The notes on pages 64 to 96 form part of these accounts.
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BERER
BALANCE SHEET

M2007%3H31H as at 31 March 2007

HHBEEERSE Post Office Trading Fund

2007 2006
ABUEHKS'000 EHEHKS 000
FRBEE Non-current assets
)T Property, plant and equipment 10 2,676,278 2,738,313
BN LInEEHEREN Operating land lease prepayment 11 200,122 204,223
BIVEE Intangible assets 12 42,805 51,109
FZEHmAE S Held-to-maturity securities 13 = 62,126
EBER Structured deposits 14 144,631 398,822
3,063,836 3,454,593
REBEE Current assets
Ay Stocks 2,791 3215
FEWIRSR ~ & RIBFFRIA Debtors, deposits and prepayments 167,741 156,564
RS EAE AL IRSK Amounts due from related parties 14,136 14,634
B EHWHE S Held-to-maturity securities 13 62,537 38,800
RERBTE Structured deposits 14 240,000 242,786
RITIFR Bank deposits 2,098,962 1,280,281
He KR4S Cash and bank balances 123,355 181,482
2,709,522 1,917,762
REBEE Current liabilities
it \ Deposits (163,672) (159,525)
FERIIR S K FERT & A Creditors and accruals (820,515) (740,275)
PN BRIE AL IRFR Amounts due to related parties (317,427) (301,380)
FERIRE SR Tax payable (46,269) =
(1,347,883) (1,201,180)
REBEESRE Net current assets 1,361,639 716,582
BEERERBEME Total assets less current liabilities 4,425,475 4,171,175
ERBEE Non-current liabilities
AEAERIA Deferred tax 16 (29,844) =
18 B 12 R Bt Provision for employee benefits (417,744) (428,571)
(447,588) (428,571)
EERE NET ASSETS 3,977,887 3,742,604
ﬁz'xﬁﬁﬁ CAPITAL AND RESERVES
EERESENR Trading fund capital 17 2,585,296 2,574,376
BRI Development reserve 18 243,664 254,584
REEBF Retained earnings 19 919,304 682,125
BREERR B Proposed dividend 8 229,623 231,519
3,977,887 3,742,604
R - L)
HLH DAon—
-'-!E D C )
EERF TAM Wing-pong
BEEBHRER Postmaster General and General Manager,
EHHELEESBLE Post Office Trading Fund
2007 9H14H 14 September 2007
F6ARICHM TR AMIREN—F5H - The notes on pages 64 to 96 form part of these accounts.

Annual Report 2006/07 Hongkong Post 61



STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

HZE200743A318IEEE  for the year ended 31 March 2007

HHEEERSE Post Office Trading Fund

2007 2006

BMEHKS'000 BHHKS'000

FH4Ee Balance at beginning of year 3,742,604 3,408,122
BRBLE BT Profit after tax 459,246 463,038
eNRE Dividend paid (223,963) (128,556)
FRERR Balance at end of year 3,977,887 3,742,604
FOL4EGE TR ALLIRE B—E5 ° The notes on pages 64 to 96 form part of these accounts.
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RERER
CASH FLOW STATEMENT

HZE200743A318ILEE  for the year ended 31 March 2007

HHEEERSE Post Office Trading Fund

2007 2006

B ¥EHK$ 000 FBEEHKS 000

EEFHENRERE Cash flows from operating activities
EEEAN Profit from operations 447,252 405,458
M REREVITE Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 113,369 164,689
BN EEHEE R Amortisation of operating land lease prepayment 4,101 4,450
B EERH Amortisation of intangible assets 15,784 21,528
HEWE « RERSMER Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment 255 =
B BRI Ol ) /3 (Decrease)/Increase in provision for employee
benefits (9,680) 1,291
FEMIRT RIRS M, R Increase/(Decrease) in creditors and deposits 87,868 (50,901)
FEATERE A TIRFIE N Increase in amounts due to related parties 4,854 8,534
EWIR A RIFE R Decrease in debtors and stocks 1,981 10,198
JFE Uk B 28 A EIR TR A Decrease in amounts due from related parties 497 8,143
REEEEANRSEE Net cash from operating activities 666,281 573,390
REFEHNEESRE Cash flows from investing activities
EEHRBMAEIEANGRETFR  Increase in structured deposits and bank deposits
KR SR N with original maturity over three months (436,023) (71,752)
FEBI R HARR R A3 1E A 1) Redemption of held-to-maturity securities with
BEHRNES original maturity over three months 38,389 =
BEWE - SERSIVH Purchase of property, plant and equipment and
B EE intangible assets (52,433) (36,837)
BUFIE Interest received 75,303 58,265
AEREEENESTE Net cash used in investing activities (374,764) (50,324)
MEFEANESRE Cash flows from financing activities
BEER Loan repayment = (90,040)
BAFE Interest paid = (4,742)
BERRE Dividend paid (223,963) (128,556)
RAERMEEENRS TR Net cash used in financing activities (223,963) (223,338)
HERERBESEBEMNTFE Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 67,554 299,728
FINEERERELEHR Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 1,461,763 1,162,035
FRNBEREREELIEE Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 20 1,529,317 1,461,763
FOL4EBE TN ALULIRE B—E5 ° The notes on pages 64 to 96 form part of these accounts.
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS

HHEEEESE Post Office Trading Fund

64

—REH

SOAETE19955F7 A19RBIE(EEES
1&51) (B5430%) 53 - 4 R6IERBRE
FE1995F8 A1 HR M BB BHES -

B LEESHNT EEE IR —ARE
B KBS ARTS - #E20004F1 Ak AR R 14
BHRAR - TR E TARES ©

FEERE

(a) FFEZERIEH
REMEHRERERRELEARBN G
RAIKPAEEROE BT HRE %
Al (ARG - EhEREAeR
B A& BT EERNERIRE
M HELEN - BEG LR LR
B) w3 - BELEESHTRAN
TESHBERBENOT ©

(b) mEABHERNER
BRPE LA T IR AT A 674 £ B
TARNARTEFIRI - KB
R 0 A BT 19 AR (B PR AR

HE -

RET AT BM RS LRI T
WRBEEEEEL AL - A5tR
Re% - ZFHE - BT RBEREF
EEBRNER  UREERRA
BMPAE T HA 2 WMKEE - %5
fEET MBI RE - HRAELR
REMAERBBERL TR REEN
REMBIR] » 528 EMIRKE
ERAIHEE - RIGRAZFRHET R
RRERHEEREENRENR
EEMNER - EFHERASHER
BEAAAR -

BEBR

General

The Post Office Trading Fund (“POTF") was established on 1 August 1995
under the Legislative Council Resolution passed on 19 July 1995 pursuant
to sections 3, 4 and 6 of the Trading Funds Ordinance (Cap. 430).

The principal activities of the POTF are provision of general postal and

ancillary services, and electronic services after the POTF became a

Recognised Certification Authority in January 2000.

Significant accounting policies

(a)

(b)

Statement of compliance

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and all
applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs"), a
collective term which includes all applicable individual Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards
("HKASs") and Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA"). A summary of the
significant accounting policies adopted by the POTF is set out below.

Basis of preparation of the financial statements

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the financial
statements is historical cost except that derivative financial
instruments are stated at their fair values as explained in the
accounting policies set out below.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with HKFRSs
requires management to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the application of policies and reported
amounts of assets and liabilities, income and expenses. The
estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical
experience and various other factors that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form the
basis for making judgements about the carrying values of assets
and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual
results may differ from these estimates.
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS

HHEEEESE Post Office Trading Fund

2. FEEHBER®

(b) #mR ISR ANVERE 50
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Significant accounting policies (continued)

(b) Basis of preparation of the financial statements

(c)

(continued)

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in
the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects
only that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods if
the revision affects both current and future periods.

There are no critical accounting judgements involved in the application
of the POTF's accounting policies. There are also no key assumptions
concerning the future, and other key sources of estimation
uncertainty at the balance sheet date, that have a significant risk of
causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities in the next year.

Property, plant and equipment

The property, plant and equipment appropriated to the POTF on 1
August 1995 were measured initially at deemed cost equal to the
value contained in the Resolution of the Legislative Council for setting
up the POTE Property, plant and equipment acquired since 1 August
1995 are capitalised at the actual direct expenditure of acquisition
and installation.

The following items of property, plant and equipment are stated in
the balance sheet at cost less accumulated depreciation and any
impairment losses (note 2(f)):

—  buildings held for own use situated on leasehold land. The land

element is treated as an operating land lease prepayment (note
2(d));
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS

HHEEEESE Post Office Trading Fund

2. FEEHBR®
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Significant accounting policies (continued)

(c) Property, plant and equipment (continued)

other buildings held for own use appropriated to the POTE

The land is regarded as a non-depreciating asset; and

items of plant and equipment, including furniture and fittings,
plant and machinery, motor vehicles and computer systems.

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of items of property,
plant and equipment, less their estimated residual value, on a straight
line basis over the estimated useful lives as follows:

Buildings situated on leasehold land are depreciated over the
shorter of the unexpired term of lease and their estimated useful

lives

Other buildings 20 - 40 years
Furniture and fittings 5 years
Plant and machinery 7 — 15 years
Motor vehicles 4 -5 years
Computer systems 5 years

Gains or losses arising from the disposal of items of property, plant
and equipment are determined as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the item and are
recognised in the profit and loss account on the date of disposal.
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS

HHEEEESE Post Office Trading Fund

2. FEEHBER®
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Significant accounting policies (continued)

(d) Operating land lease prepayment

(e)

(f)

Operating land lease prepayment is the land element of the payment
for a building held for own use situated on leasehold land. The land
element, accounted for as an operating lease, is stated in the balance
sheet at cost less accumulated amortisation and any impairment
losses (note 2(f)). The land element is amortised on a straight-line
basis over the unexpired term of the lease.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets include acquired computer software licences and
capitalised development costs of computer software programmes.
Expenditure on development of computer software programmes is
capitalised if the programmes are technically feasible and the POTF
has sufficient resources and intention to complete development.
The expenditure capitalised includes the direct labour and cost of
materials. Intangible assets are stated at cost less accumulated
amortisation and any impairment losses (note 2(f)).

Amortization of intangible assets is charged to the profit and loss
account on a straight-line basis over the assets’ estimated useful
lives of b years.

Impairment of fixed assets

The carrying amounts of fixed assets, including property, plant and
equipment, operating land lease prepayment and intangible assets,
are reviewed at each balance sheet date to identify any indication of
impairment. If any such indication exists, an impairment loss is
recognised in the profit and loss account whenever the carrying
amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable
amount of an asset is the greater of its net selling price and value in

use.
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HHEEEESE Post Office Trading Fund

2. FEEHBR®
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Significant accounting policies (continued)

(g) Financial assets and financial liabilities

Initial recognition

The POTF classifies its financial assets and financial liabilities
into different categories at inception, depending on the purpose
for which the assets were acquired or the liabilities were
incurred. The categories are: trading financial instruments, loans
and receivables, held-to-maturity securities and other financial
liabilities.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are measured initially at
fair value, which normally will be equal to the transaction prices,
plus transaction costs for loans and receivables, held-to-maturity
securities and other financial liabilities that are directly
attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset or issue of
the financial liability. Transaction costs on trading financial

instruments are expensed immediately.

The POTF recognises financial assets and financial liabilities on
the date it becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument. Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets

are accounted for at settlement date.

Categorisation

Trading financial instruments

The POTF does not acquire financial instruments for the purpose
of trading. However, derivative financial instruments that do
not qualify for hedge accounting are categorised as “trading”
under HKAS 39, “Financial instruments: Recognition and

measurement” .

2006/07 F[EF



& B 2R
NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS

HHEEEESE Post Office Trading Fund
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Significant accounting policies (continued)

(g) Financial assets and financial liabilities (continued)

Categorisation (continued)

Trading financial instruments (continued)

Embedded derivatives that are separated from the host
contracts (note 2(g)(iv)) are also categorised as “trading” under
HKAS 39.

Trading financial instruments are carried at fair value. Changes
in the fair value are recognised in the profit and loss account in
the period in which they arise.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active
market and which the POTF has no intention of trading. This
category includes debtors, amounts due from related parties,
structured deposits, bank deposits and cash and bank balances.

Loans and receivables are carried at amortised cost using the
effective interest method less impairment losses, if any (note
2(g)(v)).

Held-to-maturity securities

Held-to-maturity securities are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturity which
the POTF has the positive intention and ability to hold to
maturity, other than those that meet the definition of loans and
receivables.
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HHEEEESE Post Office Trading Fund

2. FEEHBR®

Significant accounting policies (continued)

(9) TREERSREAE®

(g) Financial assets and financial liabilities (continued)

(i)

(iii)
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(iir)

Categorisation (continued)

Held-to-maturity securities (continued)

Held-to-maturity securities are carried at amortised cost using
the effective interest method less impairment losses, if any
(note 2(g)(V)).

Other financial liabilities
Other financial liabilities are carried at amortised cost using the
effective interest method.

Derecognition

A financial asset is derecognised when the contractual rights
to receive the cash flows from the financial asset expire, or
where the financial asset together with substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership have been transferred.

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation specified

HEEIER - ZeRAEew in the contract is discharged, cancelled or expires.
FEHHFERR o
(iv) NEPTETLA (iv) Embedded derivatives
NENETAEARRS (BT An embedded derivative is a component of a hybrid (combined)

BEMMEKIER 2— - &/ T
AEBERETETAREES
# - MEFHRERELEEHHE
B RITET MRS ©

70 ERBR

instrument that includes both the derivative and a host contract
with the effect that some of the cash flows of the combined

instrument vary in a way similar to a stand-alone derivative.
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Significant accounting policies (continued)

(g) Financial assets and financial liabilities (continued)

Embedded derivatives (continued)

An embedded derivative is separated from the host contract
and accounted for as a derivative when (a) the economic
characteristics and risks of the embedded derivative are not
closely related to those of the host contract; and (b) the hybrid
(combined) instrument is not measured at fair value with
changes in fair value recognised in the profit and loss account.
Where the embedded derivative is separated, the host contract
is accounted for according to its category (note 2(g)(ii)).

Impairment of financial assets

The carrying amounts of loans and receivables and held-to-
maturity securities are reviewed at each balance sheet date to
determine whether there is objective evidence of impairment.
If any such evidence exists, an impairment loss is recognised
in the profit and loss account as the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows discounted at the asset’s original effective
interest rate. If in a subsequent period the amount of such
impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be linked
objectively to an event occurring after the impairment loss was
recognised, the impairment loss is reversed through the profit

and loss account.

(h) Stocks
Stocks consist of postage stamps and aerogrammes held in the
stamp vaults at the Headquarters. They are stated at the lower of
cost and net realisable value. Cost is determined using the first-in,
first-out method. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price
in the ordinary course of business, less the estimated costs
necessary to make the sale.
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(i)

(j)

(k)
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Significant accounting policies (continued)

(i)

(i)

(k)

U)

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash and bank balances, and other
short-term highly liquid investments with original maturities of three
months or less.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing or amount
when the POTF has a present legal or constructive obligation as a
result of past events; it is probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate
can be made. Where the time value of money is material, provisions
are stated at the present value of the outflow of economic benefits
expected to settle the obligation.

Employee benefits

Salaries, staff gratuities, and annual leave entitlements are accrued
and recognised as expenditure in the year in which associated
services are rendered by the staff. Staff on-costs, including pensions
and housing benefits provided to the staff by the Government, are
charged as expenditure in the year in which services are rendered.

The POTF has set up a Mandatory Provident Fund (“MPF”) Scheme
by participating in a master trust scheme provided by an independent
MPF service provider to comply with the requirements under the
MPF Schemes Ordinance. Contributions paid and payable by the
POTF to the Scheme are charged to the profit and loss account.

Income tax

(i)  The Government requires the POTF to pay a notional profits
tax calculated on the basis of the provisions of the Inland
Revenue Ordinance (Cap. 112). Tax expense for the year
comprises current tax and movements in deferred tax assets
and liabilities.
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Significant accounting policies (continued)

Income tax (continued)

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income
for the year, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted
at the balance sheet date, and any adjustment to tax payable in
respect of previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible and
taxable temporary differences respectively, being the
differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities for financial reporting purposes and their tax bases.
Deferred tax assets also arise from unused tax losses and
unused tax credits.

All deferred tax liabilities, and all deferred tax assets to the extent
that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available

against which the assets can be utilised, are recognised.

The amount of deferred tax recognised is measured based on
the expected manner of realisation or settlement of the carrying
amounts of the assets and liabilities, using tax rates enacted or
substantively enacted at the balance sheet date. Deferred tax
assets and liabilities are not discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed at the
balance sheet date and is reduced to the extent that it is no
longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to
allow the related tax benefit to be utilised. Any such deduction
is reversed to the extent that it becomes probable that sufficient
taxable profit will be available.
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(iii) (iii)

HADWAIZ BTV MR AFER © (iv)

74 BB

Significant accounting policies (continued)

(m) Revenue recognition

Revenue from postal services is recognised as the services
are provided. Allowance for a measured share of stamp income
for the amount of revenue from postage stamps sold in respect
of which postal service has not yet been provided is made at
the year end.

Interest income is recognised as it accrues using the effective
interest method.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset or a financial liability and of
allocating the interest income or interest expense over the
relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash receipts or payments through
the expected life of the financial instrument or, when
appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying amount of the
financial asset or financial liability. VWhen calculating the effective
interest rate, the POTF estimates cash flows considering all
contractual terms of the financial instruments but does not
consider future credit losses. The calculation includes all fees
received or paid between parties to the contract that are an
integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and

all other premiums or discounts.

Realised gains or losses on financial instruments are recognised
in the profit and loss account when the financial instruments
are derecognised. Changes in fair value of trading financial
instruments are recognised as revaluation gains or losses in

the profit and loss account.

Other income is recognised on an accrual basis.
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Significant accounting policies (continued)

(n)

(o)

Foreign currency translation

Foreign currency transactions during the year are translated into Hong
Kong dollars at exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies
are translated into Hong Kong dollars at exchange rates ruling at the
balance sheet date. All exchange differences are dealt with in the

profit and loss account.

Related parties

The POTF is a separate accounting entity within the Government of
the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region established under the
Trading Funds Ordinance. During the year, the POTF has entered
into transactions with various related parties, including Government
bureaux and departments, trading funds and financially autonomous
bodies controlled or significantly influenced by the Government, in
the ordinary course of its business.
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3. BEH Tumover

2007 2006
EEHKS'000 SHEHKS 000
— ML IR AR TS General mail services 3,938,635 3,778,492
BURBTEERS Electronic services 9,372 9,009
FETEIA Miscellaneous revenue 167,127 178,066
4,115,134 3,965,567

4. EERE Operating costs

2007 2006

BIEHKS'000 BHHKS'000

B IR Staff costs 1,943,610 1,934,469
— BB IER X General mail operating expenses 1,405,309 1,253,801
HehERE Rental and management charges 153,257 148,766
e R Depreciation and amortisation 133,254 190,667
TG EE A Marketing expenses 20,554 20,108
FRRITHRER Central administration overhead 10,546 10,980
= ER Audit fees 1,352 1,318

3,667,882 3,560,109

5. HflkA Other income
2007 2006

BEHKS'000 EHHKS'000

M EHA Interest income 83,130 58,842

PTESMTAZFER Net realised and revaluation gains on
MEHE derivative financial instruments 4,977 466
88,107 59,308
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6. RIEHE

Finance cost

2007 2006
FSHEHKS 000

B UEHKS 000

ERENEMFARE
HYBR TR KA S

Interest on Government loan repaid

and repayable within one year - 1,728

7. RIA
(a) 1BENOBIASENTES -

Taxation

(a) Taxation charged to the profit and loss account represents:

2007 2006

B¥HKS'000 BHEHKS'000

B
ZEMNEHNFEARE

IR R

PE R 1= REERIRIT
BIRREFE

BIRABAST

Current tax
Provision for notional profits tax for
the year 46,269 -
Deferred tax
Net deferred tax liabilities recognised
for temporary differences 29,844 -

Total tax expense 76,113 -

REBELEESHE2006F3HA31H 1E
FRENERNEND T2 RATHNIAEE
PSR - PIABZE R FENBENEN
fEHIBE

Annual Report 2006/07

No notional profits tax has been provided for the year ended 31 March
2006 as the assessable profit has been fully offset by the tax losses
brought forward.
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7.

78

RE®

b) HEFRXESFBIIZER

HROBAME 2 $1iR

Taxation (continued)
(b) Reconciliation between tax expense and accounting profit at

applicable tax rates:

2007 2006
B HEHKS'000

BHEHKS'000

BREEAN 22 A

BEBMEHE175%TH BN

(2006 £17.5%)
AR 2 B2
BARBIMA B2
FEERIARE RN EE

REARIE 2 B 2
FUATFELRNEREER

RELEHIBREFE L

B2

Profit before tax 535,359 463,038

Tax at Hong Kong profits tax rate of

17.5% (2006: 17.5%) 93,688 81,032
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses 4,192 10,188
Tax effect of non-taxable revenue (14,548) (10,380)
Tax effect of prior years' tax losses

used to reduce current tax (43,655) (92,487)

Tax effect of recognising net deferred
tax liabilities for temporary
differences arising in prior years 36,436 -

RERRREREREE Tax effect of not recognising deferred

RIRIERSIE < ISR & tax arising from temporary differences = 11,647
ERHIERX Actual tax expense 76,113 =
REER Proposed dividend

BB GBURHI BARE R F AR EF

The proposed dividend to the Government is based on 50% of profit after

#50% © tax for the year.
2007 2006
FBHHKS$000  HMHKS000
FHEER Balance at beginning of year 231,519 128,556
ERRE Dividend paid (223,963) (128,556)
FFEEREFHE Adjustment of dividends for prior years (7,556) =
BEAFERS Dividend proposed for the year 229,623 231,519
FIR GG Balance at end of year 229,623 231,519
BRBH 2006/07 F[E FH
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9. EIEREERE
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Rate of return on fixed assets

(a)

The rate of return on fixed assets is calculated as profit after tax
(excluding interest income and interest expenses) divided by average
net fixed assets, and expressed as a percentage. Fixed assets include
property, plant and equipment, operating land lease prepayment and
intangible assets. The POTF is expected to meet a target rate of
return on fixed assets of 8.4% per year as determined by the Financial
Secretary.

In the prior year, the rate of return on fixed assets was calculated as
profit after tax (including interest income and excluding interest
expenses) divided by average net fixed assets, and the target rate
was 10.5%. Following a review by the Government, the basis of
calculation of the rate and the target rate were revised with effect
from 1 April 2006 to those mentioned in (a). The rate of return on
fixed assets for the prior year has been restated from 15.1% (as
previously reported) to 13.2% in order to conform with the current
year's basis of calculation.
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10. ¥13% - iR B2 44 Property, plant and equipment
THREF HKAREE RERER B ElE4

Land&  Furniture Plant & Motor  Computer #et

buildings  &fittings  machinery vehicles systems Total
BEHKS'000 A%HKS'000 BMHKS'000 B%HKS'000 EMHKS000 E%HKS000

BA Cost

200554818 At 1 April 2005 2,812,378 279,544 507,687 56,749 57475 3,713,833

BA/ Bk Additions/Transfers - 24,062 (52) 1,722 4,427 30,159

HE Adjustments - (5,052) - - (185) (5,237)
HE Disposals - - - (2,708) - (2,708)
200663 431H At 31 March 2006 2,812,378 298,554 507,635 55,763 61,717 3,736,047

200654A1A At 1 April 2006 2,812,378 298,554 507,635 55,763 61,717 3,736,047

BA/Eik Additions/Transfers - 32,537 9,114 1,044 9,017 51,712

& Adjustments - (123) = = = (123)
e Disposals - - (6,827) (1,862) - (8,689)
20074:3A31H At 31 March 2007 2,812,378 330,968 509,922 54,945 70,734 3,778,947

RitHE Accumulated depreciation

200564418 At 1 April 2005 321,124 136,560 308,075 45,747 24,247 835,753

FRNE Charge for the year 35,635 26,658 31,159 4,604 11,321 109,377

FE Adjustments - (2,931) - - (314) (3,245)
ES Revisions - 47,807 7,627 3,123 = 58,557

ERER Witten back on disposal - - - (2,708) - 2,708)
200643 431H At 31 March 2006 356,759 208,094 346,861 50,766 35,254 997,734

200654A1A At 1 April 2006 356,759 208,094 346,861 50,766 35,254 997,734

ERHE Charge for the year 35,635 37,765 26,424 2,115 1,430 113,369

! Written back on disposal - - (6,572) (1,862) = (8,434)
200743A31H At 31 March 2007 392,394 245,859 366,713 51,019 46,684 1,102,669

IRERE Net book value

200743A31H At 31 March 2007 2,419,984 85,109 143,209 3,926 24,050 2,676,278

2006%3A31H At 31 March 2006 2,455,619 90,460 160,774 4,997 26463  2,738313
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. AftTEEHERA

Operating land lease prepayment

2007 2006
BMEHKS'000 EHHKS000
%S Cost
FYIRFLR At beginning and end of year 251,600 251,600
Rt Accumulated amortisation
F4) At beginning of year 43,276 38,826
FREEH Charge for the year 4,101 4,450
FI At end of year 47,377 43,276
R TED HE Net book value
FHR At end of year 204,223 208,324
Sk : Classified as:
MENE ZE (BIE1E [FEIIRRK - Current assets (included in “Debtors,
e MIBAIE]) deposits and prepayments”) 4,101 4,101
ERBEE Non-current assets 200,122 204,223
204,223 208,324
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12.

13.

82

Intangible assets
BRI AR BERAS

Computer software licences and

system development costs
2007 2006

BMEHKS'000 BHHKS000

5% Cost

FH] At beginning of year 299,668 289,270
BB EIR Additions/Transfers 7,481 11,400
HEES Adjustments (1) (1,002)
FIR At end of year 307,148 299,668
HET#eH Accumulated amortisation

=) At beginning of year 248,559 227,031

F Charge for the year 15,784 28,581

EEES Adjustments = (7,053)
FHE At end of year 264,343 248,559

R TED HE Net book value

FR At end of year 42,805 51,109

BFERRNES Held-to-maturity securities

2007 2006

BMEHKS'000 BHHKS'000

FEEMERES

FIEREARR
TBBE1E
fBIE1E

Unlisted debt securities 62,537 100,926

Remaining maturity:

Within one year 62,537 38,800
Over one year - 62,126
62,537 100,926

ERFBERESFNET AR BIBEE
BREFIMA TR P E O -

BEBR

All the debt securities are subject to call option to be exercised at the
discretion of the issuers before maturity date.
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14. FIBER

Structured deposits

2007 2006
FSHEHKS 000

B ¥HK$'000

BRI HAE

Structured deposits with interest

—RIEEMETE — at predetermined rates 85,238 250,182
—2REBRITRAEFE RN — at rates determined by reference
MBERITRIZER S RETE to the Hong Kong Interbank
Offered Rate or the London
Interbank Offered Rate 299,393 321,920
—2RETEETLERETE — at rates determined by reference to
the exchange rate between
United States dollar and
Hong Kong dollar - 69,506
384,631 641,608
FISRERRR Remaining maturity:
THBiE1F Within one year 240,000 242,786
HBIE1F Over one year 144,631 398,822
384,631 641,608

EAETEE MR B 2R EBIRITRIZE
FEXRRRBIRITRAEFREREEN B
R BRI RIS w
RITT{ER R -

The structured deposits with interest at predetermined rates or at rates
determined by reference to the Hong Kong Interbank Offered Rate or the
London Interbank Offered Rate are subject to call option to be exercised
at the discretion of the banks before maturity date.

ER DRI BTTEREEN B
REER  ERNENTATIACDEERD
B - WHIRITETEAR - FRB SRS
TFR R E AR H o

For the structured deposits with interest at rates determined by reference
to the exchange rate between United States dollar and Hong Kong dollar,
the embedded derivatives are separated from the deposits and accounted
for as derivatives. All these structured deposits matured during the year.
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15. fTEEMTR
(a) FTELRMT EMIREE

EHINESH

RBEEFOAEITETA

Derivative financial instruments
(a) Carrying values of denvative financial instruments

2007
BE a8 BE A&

Liabilities
P HK$'000

Assets
BEHKS'000

Assets Liabilities
FB¥HKS'000 BEHK$'000

Forward foreign

exchange contracts 5,443 - 144 70
Derivatives embedded

in structured deposits - - 392 =

5,443 - 536 70

TES B TARE B ERFEI9HRH
HRERBRXZAENERMTA WA
FHEFIIR © LA _ESIIRMIER AHED R
REEREE - D RIAA YRR -
B RIBMNFIA] KM IRR L E &
IR -

(b) FTESMTANERE

Derivative financial instruments are categorised as trading financial
instruments under HKAS 39 and carried at fair value. Their positive and
negative fair values as shown above have been recognised as assets and
liabilities and included in “Debtors, deposits and prepayments” and
“Creditors and accruals” respectively.

(b) Notional amounts of derivative financial instruments

EHSNES K
BEEFNAEINTETA

2007 2006

BUEHKS'000 EBHEHKS 000

Forward foreign exchange contracts 283,257 3,461
Derivatives embedded in structured deposits - 69,506
283,257 72,967

FIAINER AT E A NRRERRES
BESHEKLXBR A ERRPTE

ITESRTANRBERRERTRR S
MEE - MIFRRELREE -

84 ERBR

Foreign exchange contracts are entered into primarily to protect the POTF
from the impact of currency fluctuation during the normal course of
business.

The notional amounts of derivative financial instruments indicate the
volume of outstanding transactions and do not represent amounts at risk.
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16. ;EEEFRIE Deferred tax
(a) H2006%F3A31H @ RERERKE (a) As at 31 March 2006, the unrecognised potential deferred tax
FTEIEERE (BE) /AfEmT (assets)/liabilities consisted of:

2006
FEHEHKS 000
TRIEREE Tax losses (43,655)

B a BT e R A Depreciation allowances in excess of the related
hELiiaE depreciation and amortisation 37,155
HahErsEEa Other temporary differences (706)
(7,206)
AR EER B R S EIR RGBS IEAE Deferred tax benefits were not recognised because their realisation could

T ESHEE - Bl = RERR not be assured beyond reasonable doubt.
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16. EIEIRIE () Deferred tax (continued)
b) FA - FIEHRIEEELHEE (b) During the year, all tax losses have been utilised and deferred tax is
B TERERMEEER recognised for temporary differences. Major components of deferred
JEIEFETE © 7200743 A31 tax recognised in the balance sheet as at 31 March 2007 and the
ArEERERAERHIR movements during the year are as follows:
ERENEZHEKBH RE
TEFANEBOT :

HAERNER
R ERHE
Depreciation
allowances

in excess of the = EHAtEBEMHZER

related depreciation  Other temporary @t

and amortisation differences Total
B ¥HK$'000 B ¥HK$ 000 FBHHK$ 000

200654 A 1B £ Balance at 1 April 2006 = = =
REBRRAMER /@) Charged/(Credited) to

profit and loss account 30,582 (738) 29,844
200763 A31R 48 Balance at 31 March 2007 30,582 (738) 29,844
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17. EEEREX Trading fund capital
I ABATEHERE L EECHIRE ° This represents the Government's investment in the POTF

2007 2006

BMEHKS'000 BHHKS'000

FHEER Balance at beginning of year 2,574,376 2,565,328
B EEREGEE Transfer from development reserve 10,920 9,048
FIR S Balance at end of year 2,585,296 2,574,376
—%%%10,919,8347T (2006 F BB An amount of HK$10,919,834 (2006: HK$9,047678) in the development
9,047,67870) W RFEBEAIEEEREE reserve that had already been spent to finance the acquisition of fixed
BEVEH(LALEBEESEAN (AT assets was capitalised as trading fund capital (see note 18 below).
1£18) °
18. R EE Development reserve

2007 2006

BMEHKS'000 BHHKS'000

FHEEH Balance at beginning of year 254,584 263,632
BALBEESER Transfer to trading fund capital (10,920) (9,048)
FREER Balance at end of year 243,664 254,584
200756331 BEERARAEES - TJH The balance at 31 March 2007 is uncommitted and is earmarked for future
TEHS REFSH R © development.
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19. REEF Retained eamings

2007 2006

BEHK$'000  HBHEEHKS000

FREERR Balance at beginning of year 682,125 450,606

FFEREFHE Adjustment of dividends for prior years 7,556 =

BRI 2 F Profit after tax 459,246 463,038

RERFERE Dividend proposed for the year (229,623) (231,519)

FIREERR Balance at end of year 919,304 682,125
20. e REEARELEH Cash and cash equivalents

2007 2006

BMEHKS'000 BHHKS'000

e NIRTT4E Cash and bank balances 123,355 181,482
[RE HABR TR B3 1E A /Y Structured deposits and bank
EREGHRIRITER deposits with original maturity
within three months 1,405,962 1,280,281
1,529,317 1,461,763
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21. HREATETHES Related party transactions

BEAEIEE AR ERENZ S -
A EFRRTOENEESSHE
o

@) RELBEEATHRERIE RS
IR AR 765 LA K% B 33 R AR B A X 2R AR
B BERBHBKARBE
185,112,6627C (20064F A&H
184,795,8587T)

BEATHERELELSRME
< EDR - 5BAI  BFEE R
B PRITEREREGTER

1% o BRI R BB AN RS

242,518,648 T (2006 F /A

230,903,87370) ; LA K&
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Apart from those separately disclosed in the accounts, the other material
related party transactions for the year are summarised as follows:

(@) Services provided to related parties included general postal services
and agency services, which are compatible with postal related
services. The total revenue derived from these services amounted
to HK$185,112,662 (2006: HK$184,795,858);

(b)  Services received from related parties included computer services,
printing services, training services, building management and
maintenance, rental of accommodation, central administration and
auditing services. The total cost incurred on these services amounted
to HK$242,518,648 (2006: HK$230,903,873); and

(c) Acquisition of fixed assets from related parties included fitting out
projects of postal offices, acquisition of land and buildings, plant and
machinery, computer systems and motor vehicles. The total cost of
these assets amounted to HK$17,053,689 (2006: HK$9,742,690).

Services rendered to or received from related parties which were also
available to the public were charged at the rates payable by the general
public. Services which were available only to related parties were charged
on a full cost recovery basis.
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22. iz Commitments
(a) EAFEE (a) Capital commitments
2007438310 @ HHBLEE At 31 March 2007, the POTF had capital commitments, so far as not
SARBETEENERR AR E AR provided for in the financial statements, as stated below:
BT

2007 2006

BMEHKS'000 BHHKS'000

BHEREITHNEH Authorised and contracted for 47,496 35,239

BHEERETNEL Authorised but not yet contracted for 335,264 333,086
382,760 368,325

(b) REHEEE (b) Operating lease commitments

E2007F3A31H » BHEBELEE At 31 March 2007 the total future minimum lease payments under

S E AR iy AT AT non-cancellable operating leases for land and buildings were payable

EMBERRREZ N HERSERE as follows:

I

2007 2006

BMEHKS'000 BHHKS'000

TBB1E Not later than one year 75,990 68,659
BB 1 BT BiBEbF Later than one year and not later

than five years 150,979 137,813

HRiEbE Later than five years 1,088,974 966,704

1,315,943 1,173,176
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23. YIEEH

Segmental information
BRR KRS SR At

Postal & Ancillary Services

Electronic Services Total
2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006
BHKS'000 AHHKS000 HA¥HKS000 BEHKS000 EMHKS'000 AHHKS000

EE L] Turnover 4,105,762 3,956,558 9,372 9,009 4,115,134 3,965,567
NRHE - BERRE Operating costs before depreciation,

RAAIADEERA amortisation and finance cost (3533,435) (3,345,177 (1,193) (24,265)  (3534,628)  (3,369,442)
NBRE  BERBERKA  Profit/(Loss) from operations before

WEERR/ (58) depreciation, amortisation and

finance cost 572,327 611,381 8,179 (15,256) 580,506 596,125
HEREH Depreciation and amortisation (132,325)  (182,465) (929) (8202)  (133,254)  (190,667)
BERK Finance cost = (1728) = = = (1.728)
NRAE  BERBERARE  Profit/(Loss) after depreciation,

WEFH/ (E8) amortisation and finance cost 440,002 427188 7,250 (23,458) 447,252 403730
A Other income 88,107 59,308
BHARA Profit before tax 535,359 463,038
A Taxation (76,113) =
BHERA Profit after tax 459,246 463,038
BE Assets
PEEE Segmented assets 3,102,591 3,165,969 1,282 2,089 3,103,873 3,168,058
FERHEE Unallocated assets 2,669,485 2,204,297
BEET Total assets 5773358  5372,355
8% Liabilities
PBEAR Segmented liabilities 1787549 1,613,150 7,922 16601 1795471 1,629,751
=Ly Total liabilities 1795471 1,629,751
HivER Other information
EARRX Capital expenditure 59,069 35,320 - - 59,069 35,320
FERBEENIMY Non-cash expenditure other than

LAY depreciation and amortisation 1,678 1,167 = = 1,678 1,167
SEATIER B RS Government grants received and

NERERE: receivable in respect of:

MTEEE Depreciable assets = = - 350 - 350

WA Income = = - - = =

XA Expense items - - 15,132 4,63 15,132 4,63
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24. M RREE
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BEBR

Financial risk management

(a)

(b)

(c)

Investment policy

To provide an ancillary source of income, surplus cash is invested in
a portfolio of financial instruments. The portfolio includes held-to-
maturity securities, structured deposits and bank deposits. It is the
POTF's policy that all investments in financial instruments should be
principal-protected.

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that one party to a financial instrument will fail
to discharge an obligation and cause the other party to incur a financial
loss.

The POTF has no significant concentrations of credit risk. It has
policies in place to ensure that wholesale postal services are provided
to customers with an appropriate credit history. Postal services to
retail customers are substantially settled in cash. All fixed deposits
and structured deposits are placed with high-credit-quality licensed
banks in Hong Kong.

The maximum exposure to credit risk is represented by the carrying
amount of each financial asset in the balance sheet.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that funds will not be available to meet liabilities
as they fall due. This results from amount and maturity mismatches
of assets and liabilities.

The POTF manages liquidity risk by forecasting the amount of cash

required and monitoring its working capital to ensure that all liabilities
due and known funding requirements could be met.
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24. BERIBER &)

Financial risk management (continued)

(d) RIZ=E k2

(d) Interest rate risk
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Interest rate risk refers to the risk of loss arising from changes in
market interest rates. This can be further classified into fair value
interest rate risk and cash flow interest rate risk.

Fair value interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value of a financial
instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates.
Since all the POTF's bank deposits and some of its held-to-maturity
securities and structured deposits bear interest at fixed rates, their
fair values will fall when market interest rates increase. However, as
they are all stated at amortised cost, their carrying amounts will not
be affected by changes in market interest rates.

Cash flow interest rate risk is the risk that future cash flows of a
financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market
interest rates. The POTF is exposed to cash flow interest rate risk
because some of its held-to-maturity securities and structured
deposits bear interest at rates determined by reference to market
interest rates. In addition, since all the held-to-maturity securities
and some of the structured deposits are callable by the issuers or
the banks before maturity date, changes in market interest rates
may lead to the exercise of the call options and therefore affect their
future cash flows.
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24. BBERABRER @ Financial risk management (continued)
(d) RIZRERE @ (d) Interest rate risk (continued)
TRIEHHELEE AR The table below sets out the POTF's exposure to interest rate risk,
FERR  SEXBHEBEEHINU based on the major interest bearing assets stated at carrying amounts
IREESR - WREHFIERERTH and categorised by the earlier of contractual re-pricing dates or
B BB A MERNREEES maturity dates and stating the effective interest rate for each group
B BRI ASAEENERFIE - of assets. For held-to-maturity securities and structured deposits, it
BEMARMNESREREFR - BlR is assumed that the call options would not be exercised by the issuers
TE B AT ASIRIT IR A or the banks before maturity dates.

AITTIE IR IR -

B3R BiB1E iyl
BFEB1E EF @B {BFEEsE
-1 More than  More than 1year More than 2 years

Effective F2@3EA 3monthsbutnot  butnotmore  butnot more
interest rate 3 months orless  more than 1 year than 2 years than 5 years Total
BEHKS000  AMHKS000  AMHKS000  AMHKS000  7MHKS000

2007
BERRNES Held-to-maturity securities 1.28% - 62531 = - 62531
GERER Structured deposits 1.02% - 240,000 105,562 39,069 384,631
BIER Bank deposits 4.21% 1,828,962 210,000 - - 2,093,962
1,828,962 572,537 105,562 39,069 2,546,130
2006
FEMRNES Held-to-maturity securities 0.75% - 38,800 62,126 - 100,926
BiERR Structured deposits 157% - 242,786 240,000 158,822 641,608
Rk Bank deposits 407% 1,280,281 - = - 1,280,281
1,280,281 281,586 302,126 158,822 2022815
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Financial risk management (continued)

(e) Currency risk

(f)

Currency risk is the risk that the value of a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates.

The POTF enters into foreign exchange contracts to protect it from
the impact of currency fluctuation during the normal course of

business.

At the balance sheet date, financial assets of HK$515 million (2006:
HK$358 million) were denominated in United States dollar and HK$55
million (2006: HK$97 million) were denominated in other foreign
currencies. Financial liabilities of HK$485 million (2006: HK$462
million) were denominated in Special Drawing Rights and HK$35
million (2006: Nil) were denominated in other foreign currencies.
The remaining financial assets and financial liabilities were

denominated in Hong Kong dollar.

Fair values

The fair values of financial instruments quoted in active markets are
their quoted prices at the balance sheet date. In the absence of
such quoted market prices, fair values are estimated using present
value or other valuation techniques, using inputs based on market

conditions existing at the balance sheet date.

All financial instruments are stated in the balance sheet at amounts
equal to or not materially different from their fair values.
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25. EEHERNEE2007F3 A

Possible impact of amendments, new standards and

31H ILFEEMAERT « #idE
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interpretations issued but not yet effective for the
year ended 31 March 2007

Up to the date of issue of the financial statements, the HKICPA has issued
a number of amendments, new standards and interpretations which are
not yet effective for the year ended 31 March 2007 and which have not
been early adopted in the financial statements.

The POTF is in the process of making an assessment of what the impact
of these amendments, new standards and interpretations is expected to
be in the period of initial adoption. So far it has concluded that the adoption
of them is unlikely to have a significant impact on the POTF’s results of

operations and financial position.

The following developments may result in new or amended disclosures

in future financial statements:

EUT B Effective for
ZEBBRN accounting periods
BT BEEXR beginning on or after
BRI BRE LR 200741 A1H HKFRS 7, Financial instruments: disclosures 1 January 2007
75 RIA :
W=
BAGTEAE 1% 20071 81H Amendment to HKAS 1, Presentation of 1 January 2007

(1E7T) - M E
M2 : EAKE

BEBR

financial statements: capital disclosures
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Audit Commission
The Government of the Hong Kong
Special Administrative Region

Independent Audit Report

To the Legislative Council

| certify that | have examined and audited the financial statements of the
Post Office Trading Fund set out on pages 60 to 96, which comprise the
balance sheet as at 31 March 2007, and the profit and loss account,
statement of changes in equity and cash flow statement for the year
then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other

explanatory notes.

General Manager, Post Office Trading Fund’s
responsibility for the financial statements

The General Manager, Post Office Trading Fund is responsible for the
preparation and the true and fair presentation of these financial statements
in accordance with section 7(4) of the Trading Funds Ordinance (Cap. 430)
and Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards. This responsibility includes
designing, implementing and maintaining internal control relevant to the
preparation and the true and fair presentation of financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error;
selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies; and making

accounting estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances.

Auditor’s responsibility

My responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements
based on my audit. | conducted my audit in accordance with section 7(5)
of the Trading Funds Ordinance and the Audit Commission auditing
standards. Those standards require that | comply with ethical requirements
and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance as to

whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures
selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of
the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and true and
fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's
internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
made by the General Manager, Post Office Trading Fund, as well as

evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

| believe that the audit evidence | have obtained is sufficient and appropriate

to provide a basis for my audit opinion.

Opinion

In my opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view of the
state of affairs of the Post Office Trading Fund as at 31 March 2007 and of
its results of operations and cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have been
properly prepared in accordance with the manner provided in section 7(4)
of the Trading Funds Ordinance.

(YING Kwok-wing)

Assistant Director of Audit
for Director of Audit

Audit Commission

26th Floor, Immigration Tower
7 Gloucester Road

Wanchai, Hong Kong

14 September 2007
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Some interesting fast facts about Hongkong Post
in 2006/07 . ..

We Rescued Undeliverable Mail
Some 2,000,000 mail items could not be delivered due to incorrect
or illegible addresses. We were able to rescue about 80% of them.

Delivering Mail is a HEAVY Responsibility!
We handled a total of 28,378 tonnes of international mail. That's
roughly equivalent in weight to more than 6,000 elephants!

We LOVE Visitors!

362 organisations with a total of 14,130 participants visited various
post offices and mail centres to see our operations. That's an
average of 50 people per working day.

Peak Performance
We achieved 99.9% reliability on next-day delivery of local letters,
the highest performance of its kind in the world.

International Recognition

Our Speedpost international express mail service was awarded the
Universal Postal Union’s Gold Level Certification, the pinnacle of
industry recognition worldwide, for the 5 consecutive year.

Universal Accessibility

Our website www.hongkongpost.com was one of the first 18
websites in Hong Kong to be accredited with W3C international
web-accessibility standards, indicating the industry’s highest degree
of accessibility.
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